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CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT

The international fishery group Sosremere Kala AS was founded ot the end of 2006, it owns fish farms
in Finlard and Sweden, cortemporery production facilities in Sooremaon and Finland and sales networks in
Estonia, Latvia ond Finland, The best-known brands of the Group in Estonia ore Gurme and Meriline and in
Finland Heimon Kala and Soaristemeren Kaola. The companies that belong to the Group ere OU Vettel and
O SourmetHouse in Estonia, Seoristomeren Kaka Oy and Heimon Kala Oy in Finland, Overumans Fisk Ab
and Skiirgirdshavets Fish Ab in Sweden. The product portfolio of the Group includes fillets, cold smoked
arid hot smoked products, cured and salted fish, breaded fish products and cowiar, The cavier comes
from our own fish farms. The formed fish are reinbow trout, white fish and alse more rare trout-like
fishes such as golden Trout and brown trout,

Saoremere Kala AS is owned by infernational irvestment fund Amber Trust S.CA, its associated funds

and the management of the camparmy,

The net turnover of Sooremere Kolo AS during the peripd Q107 2007-30 .06 2008 wes EEE 472.5m and
the net profit wes EEK 7.2m.

Market overview

Firnizh market

The primery row material for Finnish fish processing companies i3 Salmon imported from MNorway and
Denmark (40% of the total volume of the market) ond row material from locel fish farms end fishing,
63% of the local row material comes from fish farms, 28% comes from sea fishing and %% from
freshwarer fishing,

The main emphasis of our figh forms ig on farming and development of trout-like fishes and white fish,

Zaaristomeren Kala Oy [enterprize belonging to the Group) principal ectivities are fish forming and
processing. Fish processing tokes place in Uusikoupunki, fish and fry cre farmed in B different regions in
Finland. The compary owns fwo fish forms in Sweden. Fish farms are subsidiaries of Saoristomeren Kala
Oy and the total velume of annwal farming licence is approximately 2,600 fons (respectively ~1, 500 tors
in Sweden and ~1 100 fons in Finland), The aversge number of employees during the financial yeor was 63,

Heimon Eala Oy (zecond enterprise belonging to the Group) principel activities are fish processing and
marketing The company markets and supplies far all the Fianish retail erganisations in the total
production velume of the companies belonging to the Group. The company is based in Central Finland in
Himeenlinna. The average number of employees during the financial year was 43.

Estonian market

Local species of fish from the Baltic Sea like Baltic herring and sprat provide the essential raw material
for the Esterion fish processing companies and the filleting componies use freshwoter fish such as
perch, perch pike and salmeon. The canning production contirwes to be oriented to the CIS and Central and
Eastern Eurcpean markets, the rest of the products to the western markets. The ready-te-eat products
are marketed both to the Eost and West. The production of ready-to-eat products is pramarily based on
imported row materials.

Vettel 00 export wiume during the financial year 2007-2008 wos EEK 120m (1.6 thousend tons) end
impart volume was EEK 14Tm (2.8 thousond tons), Compared with the Nordic countries, the share of
fishery products in food intake is considerably smaller in Estonia. Tr Western Europe the share of fish in
household food expenditure varies greatly from 25% in Austria to [56% in Portugal. Most fish is
consumed in Portugal (63 kg/pp). Iceland (46 kg/pp). Spain (41 kg/pp) and Norway (37 kg/pp). In Estonia
the respective figure is 15 kg per person (507 EEE/ppl. According to the survey ordered by the Estonian
Association of Figshery household experditure on fishery products increased by co 4% in 2005, which is
similar to the growth on the Finnish marker. This trend is expected to continue in the coming years oS
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the household income and increase in consumer numbers continues to grow. Pursuant to the survey of the
Estonien Association of Fishery the consumers are most interested in chilled fish and fishery products,
salted and smoked fishery products, this applies for red fish (trout and salmon) and freshwater fish,

Eventz of the finansial year

In October 2006 new compary Sooremere Kola AS wos founded and through o share swap in Jonuary
2007 it acquired 100% shoreholding in Vettel OU and Sooristomeren Kaba Oy.

The maragement board of the Sasremere Kala AS Group has three members: the chairman of the board
and two members of the board (manager of Vettel OU and manager of Heimon Kala Oy).

Druring the accounting period a total of EEK 24.7m was invested into fixed assets. The major investments
were renewing and modernising production equipment, obtaining fish farming ond feeding stuffs
equipment and building the water supply and treatment facility.

The Group still hes many unreclised oppertunities to make it more efficient, primarily internal
resrganisation measures that would enable to erharce the stremgths and eliminate the weaknesses of
undertakings. By now the first stage of reorganisation is completed, which has resulted in stabilised
meark-ups and production volume growth, which has led the Group to starting the rew financial year with a
more stable net margin. The scquisition of GeurmetHouse, o new subsidiary in Estonia has remarkably
improved the market pogition of the Group in Estonia,

The average number of emplovees in the Group during the financial year was 192, The personnel expenses
during the accourting period amounted to EEE 78.3m.

Irn 2007-2008 the members of the monagement boord and supervisory board received fees in the amount
of EEK 7,8m.

Subsidicries

Az of 30.06.08 the following subsidiaries belonged to Scoremere Kalo AS:

Searistomeren Kala Oy - registered in Finland - holding 100% - fish farming, menufocturing and sale of
fishery products,

Skiirgdrdshavets Fisk Ab - registered in Sweden - holding 100% - fish farming and soles.

Owerumans Fisk Ab - registered in Sweden - holding 100% - fish forming and sales.

Vettel OU - registered in Estonia - holding 100%. - manufacturing and sale of fishery products.

Heimon Kala OV - registered in Finland - hollding 100% - manufacturing and sele of fishery products,
GourmetHouse OU - registered in Estonia - helding 51% - sale of fishery products,
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AS Sparemere
Kala
| | | 1
100 % 100 % Vettel 100 % Heiman BI%
Saorishomeren o Kala Oy GourmetHouse
Kala Oy (grupp) ou
|
100 % 100 %
Skirglirdshovet | | Overumans Fisk
5 Fisk Ab Ab
Financial matics
R hists 2007/2008 20062007
liquidity ratie [(ewrrent assets = irmeertory) 0.34 0.64
{current liabilities = liabilities 1o owners)]
current ratio [current assets / (current liabilities - 1.05 1.7T4

ligbilities to cwners) ]
[{operating profit + depreciation cost) / net

EBITDA margin sales] 6.12% 8.35%
net margin [net profit / net sales] 1.53% L38%
Future trends

The principal goal for financial year 2008/09 is to further integrate the activities of Viettel OU, Heimon
Kala O¥, Saoristomeren Kala OY and SourmetHouse O in the Sacremere Kale Sroup. The enterprises n
the Sooremere Kok Group heve joined forces te achieve contral over the entire supply chain, from fish
farming to marketing. It is now vital to gredually implement the synergies arising from it and to boost
the strengths of enterprises. The imestment plan for 2008/0% includes the completion of the already
started production expansion in Soaremaa in Vettel OU and the completion of fish farming expansion in
Sweden. Turnover farecast for the next financial vear is EEE 500m.

The management board of the company proposes to refer the profit for the financial year to retained
earnings, Pursuart to the long-term development plans, the company does not foresee any payments of
dividends to its cwners pries to 2009,

Aiva Varem
Chairman of the manogement board
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DECLARATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD JUHATUSE KINMNITUS
KONSOLIDEERIMISERUPT RAAMATUPIDAMISE AASTAARUANDELE

We hereby declare our responsibility for composing the consolidated annuel accounts on pages & - 43 and
confirm that:

L. the accounting policies followed in the drawing up of the comsclidated annuel accounts are in
conformity with the international financial reporting standards;

2, the congolidated ennual financicl statement reflects a true and fair finencial situation, results end
cash-flow of the Group:

3.  the &roup and parent company continue to be operating.

bk — (g

A \Fm F‘-h'l'l!l: Olavi Lahtinen
Chairman of the management board Member of the management board

Petri August Oksanen
Member of the management board

15 December 2008

For identification purposes only
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
in thoutands of kroors

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS

Cash ard bank & 681 16 287 S
Shart-term financial investments 0 179 3
Receivables 55 259 50 528 4
Prepayments 5745 4339 4
Mon-current assets held for sale 284 284 &
Biological assets 74 904 T8 BT4 7
Inventories 51971 40 T41 T
Total current ascets 194 843 191 &32
Long-term financial imvestments 1482 1409 g
Irvestment in joint enterprise Q 732 10
Deferred tax assets 5 541 91 i1
Property, plant and equipment 120 555 122 2085 12
Intengible assets 95148 92 657 13
Total non=current assets 222 75 218 094
TOTAL ASSETS 417 569 409 T25
Borrowings 117 Tk & 177 1%
Payables and prepayments &3 409 50273 18
Government grants 4 470 3567 15
Total current liabilities 185 645 110 417
Long-term borrowings 48 &03 120 230 15
Deferred tax liability 11087 13 689 15
Gevernment grants 27 BB0 28 134 19
Total mon-current llabilities 87 570 162 053
Total licbilities 273 215 272 470
Minority interests 2 143 2
Share copital B 612 B 612 20
Share premism 127 221 127 921
Mandatery legal reserve 13% o
Unrealised currency exchange rate dif ferences -127% =60
Retained earnings B 813 2781
Total ewner's equity 142 211 137 255
Total equity 144 354 137 255
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY 417 569 408 725

For identification purmpases oy
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
in thoutands of kroons

01.07.07 - 24.10.06 -

Revenue 472 B3l 202 040 el
Cost of sales -396 400 -168 813 22
Eross profit 76 131 33 227
Marketing expenses =41 794 -20 735 22
Administrative and general expenses -2 246 -13 605 £e
Oher income 11 T4 4 637 22
Profit/loss from increase in the value of biologicel assets -2 277 13 228 22
Other expenses -3 242 -1 707 £
Operating profit 12 276 15 045
Financial income 4 TO6 254 23
Financial expenses =14 275 =7 144 £3
Brofit before tax 2 T2 8 153
Income fax 4 2% -5 372 24
Met profit for the financial year 7 231 2 TE1
net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Parent 6171 2 7Tel
net prafit attributable to mirority interest 1061 -
For identification purposes only
Sl ErnsT & YOUNG
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
in thousends of kroons
01.07.2007=  24,10.20068=-
........ S S — 30.06.2008  30.06.2007 _ Mote
Cazh flow from operating octivities
Operating profit 12 &6 I5 045
Adjustments to operating profit 7 235 5 366
Deprecaation and impalrment of non-carrent assets 17 24% 7 484 12,13
Frofit from disposals of property, phant and equipement =3 047 79 F
Gevernment grants -5 254 -2 18 22
Allowance of receivables and prepayments 104 =369 22
Foreign exchange losses a3 =37 22
Change in receivables ond prepoyments reloted ta operating actvities L4 403 18 T2
Change in receiables I5 EOG 21 624
Change in prepayments -1 406 - w4
Charge in imventary -5 &04 =& D47
Change in bickegical asseis 4 705 =13 228 22
Change in babilities and prepoyments related to operating activities B 433 =64 BRI
Treame fao paid -2 W7 -16%3 24
Total cazh flow from operating activitics 35 341 -48 438
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and egquipment, and intangible foed ceseta -2 393 -4 14 9 12,13
Sale of property, plant and equipment, and intargible fixed assets 7922 2456
Met cash flow from purchase of subsidiaries 3377 11763 g
Met coth flow from sale of fubsidiaries 277 L] 9
Acguisition of other firenclal assets =74 =179 £
Sale of other financial assets 1040 1174 bl
Interest received TES 254 23
Total carh flow from imseshing activities =19 119 9 04
Cazh flow from financing ectivities
Loans recerved. bonds issued 40 450 120 994
Bepaymants of loan recsived -41 X4 -3% 518
Charge in factoring liability -7 249 -2 678
Government grant received 1236 1505 1%
Repeyment of financial lease principal =Z 422 =1 203 14
Interest paid -15 324 -4 187 23
Issue of shares L] 23 046 20
Reperchase of treasury shares of subsidiary Q =42 658
Total cath fiow from fimancing sctivities =24 613 55 301
Total cath fiow -8 391 15 947
Cath and cath eguivakents at begirsing of the period 16 ZET 400 z
Unrealised currency exchange rate differences -121% =4
Lharge in cagh and cash equivalents -8 391 15 947
Caszh and cash eguivalents ot end of the perisd & GE1 1& 287 2

The belance of cash and cosh equivalents in the cash flow statement eguals to the balance of cash and

bark accounts in the balence sheet,

For identification purpasas only
El ERNST & Y
LY L LOOF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

in thoutands of kroons
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mote 1 General information and the basis of preparation

A, General information

AS Sagremere Kalo was established on 24 October 2006 and thus all the corsolidated firarncial
statements regarding the previcus finoncial year reflect the peried from 24 October 2006 te 30 June
2007,

The man fiekds of activity of the Searemere Kola Group are fish ferming, Fish processing and sales,

AS Seoremere Kolo is a holding company registered in Republic of Estonia and its subsidiories are
imvolved in fish farming, fish processing and sales.

According to the Estonian Commercial Code, the General Shoreholders' Meeting authorizes the annual
report prepored by the Monagement Boord and approved by the Supervisory Board. The current
consolidated financial statements form a part of the annual repert to be approved by the shereholders
and the basis of the profit allocation decision, The shareholders hold the power not to approve the annual
report prepared by the Manogement Board and approved by the Supervisory Board ond the right to
request a new annual report 1o be prepared,

The 2007-2008 consolidoted financial statements of AS Scoremere Kaola include the financicl
performance of the fellowing enterprises: Vettel OU, GourmetHouse OU, Heimon Kola Oy ond
Soaristomeren Kole Oy Group (consolidated together with subsidiaries).

B. Basis of preparaticn

AS Scaremere Kala (hereinafter also “parent compary™) and it3 subsidiorwes (hercinafter together
“Group”) consolidoted financial statemerts have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for in
cases that are described in the following accounting principles otherwise (eg. certain financial
investments and biological assets are recorded in their foir value)

The consslidated finamcial reperts are prepered in thousands of Estonian kroons, unless noted otherwise.

Pursuant to the Accounting Act of the Republic of Estonia, the unconsolidated financial statements (ie.
balance sheet, income statement, cash flow stetement and statement of changes in equity) of the parent
compary are presented in the notes of the corsolidated financial statements. The umconsolidated
financial statements of AS Sopremere Kok are presented in Mote 30, The financicl stetements are
prepared using the some accounting principles and estimation bases as for the consolidated financial
statements, except for investments in subsidiaries.

Statement of complicnce

The corsclidated financial statements of AS Soaremere Kala and its subsidiories are prepered in
sccordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard (TFRS)

The moin accounting principles and basis of estimations have been laid out below

£, Basgiz of conzolidation

The consolidated firancial statements comprize the financial indicatores of AS Searemere Kala and its
subsidiaries, consclidoted on a line-by-line basis. The subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
gll ErnsT&YOoUNG ™

/G 1 2 by
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which significant influence is trarsferred to the Group and cease o be consolidated from the date on
witeh the significant influence is trarsferred out of the group.

Subsidiories are companies controlled by the parent company, Control is presumed to exist if the parent
compary owng, either directly or indirectly, over BO% of the voting sheres or shore copital of the
subsidiary, or if the parent company controls the subsidiary’s firancial or operating policies under o
contract or agreement, or if the porent compony hos the right to appoint or remove @ majority of the
members of the management bocrd or higher management of the subsidiory.

The eccounting principles applied by subsidiaries in the preparation of the financial statements are, To a
material extent, the some principles as those applied by the parent compary. All intra-group
transactions, recenables and liabilities, including unrealsed profits and losses arming from intercompary
trarsactions, have been fully eliminated. Unrealised losses are not elimirated, if these losses essentiolly
represert a decrease in the value of assets,

Minerity sharehalding, which is the part of profit or loss and net assets of o subsidiary that does rat
belong to the Growp, i reflected a2 o seporate entry in the income statement and on the bolonce sheet
(as part of owner's equity).

Mew subsidiaries (business combinations) are recognised in the conselidated finencial statements based
en the purchaese method.

Thee acquisition cost of business combinations, accourted for by using the purchase methed, is allocated
to the fair values of assers, liabilities and contingent liobilities on the acquisition date, The partion of
the ocquisition cost which exceeds the fair value of the acquired assefs, liobilities and contingent
liabilities is recognised as goodwill (see accounting principle “Goodwill®). If the fair value exceeds the
cost, the difference will immediately be fully chorged to the income of the period (under "Administrotive
and general expenses” in the income statement].

The acquisition of minarity shareholding is reflected so that the difference between acquisition cost and
the book value of the acquired mincrity sharehalding i reflected directly under owner's equity belonging
to the parent comparsy.

k. Changes in occounting principles and presentation

The consolidoted finoncial statements are prepared bosed on the principle of consistency ond
comparability. This means that the same accounting policies and presentation formats ore used by the
group on an on-going bogis ;m preperation of financial statements. Changes will be infroduced fo the
accounting principles and presentation formats only if so conditioned by the new or revised IFRS and its
interpretations, or if the new accounting principles and/for presentotion formats gwve a more objective
everview of the financial position and economic results of the group and the parent company, as well as
their cash flows.

Changes in accounting principles and presentation

The accounting principles and presentation used to drow up the current financial statements follow the
principles applied last financial year. In addition, the following new/revised standards have been adopted,
which had no moterial effect an the finencial statements:

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: IFRS 7 requires disclosures that enoble users to evaluate
the significance of the &roup’s financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those financial instruments:;

For identification purposes only

Ell ErnsT & YounG
)G (o doof by "

SLIN3IWNJ0a TVNOILIaavy



ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS

SAAREMERE KALA Conselidation Group Armusl Repart 2007 - 2008
Translation of the Extonian original

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, This amendment requires the Group to make new disclosures
to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives, pelicies and processes of
managing capital;

IFRLC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impeirment. This interpretation establishes that an entity
must not reverse ond impairment loss recognised in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill or an
imvestrment in either an equity instrument or a financial esset carried of cost,

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 = Group and Tressury Shore Transactions. This inferpretation reguires orrangements
whereby an emplovee is granted rights to an entity's equity instruments to be occounted for as an equity-
settled scheme, even if the entity buys the instruments from another porty, or the shareholders provide
the equity instruments needed. The Group has rot issued instromernts caught by this inferpretation

The new IFRS standards ond interpretations

In the opinion of the group's mansgement board, the following new or revised stondards ond
interpretations, which have been passed by the date of preparation of thig annual repart but have rot
yet entered into force and been opplied by the group, have no effect on the assets and licbilities of the
group as of 30 June 2008. The requirements of these standerds end interpretations shall be followed
from the momert of their entry into force:

» IAS23  Borrowing costs (revised). The revised IAS 23 requires capitalisetion of borrowing
costs that are directly attributeble to the acquisition, construction or produecton
of a qualifying esset. The revised IAS 23 will be effective for financial yeors
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and is expected fo have an impact on the
firancigl statements of The Group:

« IFRS B Operating segments. IFRS B was issued in Movember 2006 and is effective for
firancial years begunning on or af ter 1 Jaruory 2009, IFRS B requires enfities to
disclose segment information bosed on the information reviewed by the entity's
chief cperating decision maker, The Group hos determined thet the operafing
segments disclosed in IFRS 8 will be the some of the business segments
discloged under TAS 14 The impact of this starndard on the other segment
diselosures is still to be determined. As this is o disclogsure standard, it will have
no impact on the finoncial pesition or financial performance of the Group when
implemerted in 2009

» IFRIC 12 Service Concession Agreements, The interpretafion addresses how service

concession operaters should apply existing International Finencial Reporting
Standerds (IFRS) to occcunt for the obligations they undertake and rights they
receive in service concession arrangements. Effective for annual periads beginning
an or after | Jaruasy 2008,

» IFRIC 13 Custormer Lovalty Pregrammes. IFRIC Interpretation 13 becomes effective for
anrwal periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008, This Inferpretotion reguires
customer lovalty award credits fo be acceunted for as o separate component of
the sales transaction in which they are gronted and therefore part of the fair
value of the consideration received is ollocoted fo the owerd credits and
deferred over the period that the award eredits are fulfilled. The Group expects
that this interpretation will have ro impact on the Greup’s financial statements
ef the Group does not uge such schemes.

+ IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction. IFRIC Interpretation 14 becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on ar after 1 January 2008, This Interprefetion provides guidance on
how to assess the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that
can be recognised as an asset under TAS 19 Emplyee Bernefits, The Group
expects that this Interpretation will have no impact on the financial position or
performance of the &roup, becowse the Group does not use such compensation
schemes,
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= IFRIC 15

« IFRIC 16

« IFRS]

« IFRS3R

« IAS1

« IAS 32

Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate. IFRIC 15 becomes effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009, The interpretation is to be
applied retrospectively. Tt clarifies when and hew revenue and related expenses
from the sale of o real estate unit should be recognised if an ogreement between
a developer and o buyer i2 reached before the construction of the real estate is
completed. Furthermere, the inferpretotion provides guidonce on how to
determine whether an ogreement is within the scope of IAS 11 or TAS 18,
Hedges of a Met Investment in a Foreign Operation. IFRIC 16 becomes effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 Octaber 2008, The interpretation is to
be applied prospectively. IFRIC 16 provides guidonce on the accounting fer o
hedge of a net investment. As such it provides guidance on identifying the foreign
currency risks that qualify for hedge occeunting in the hedge of o net
investment, where within the group the hedging instruments can be held in the
hedge of a net investment and how an ertity should determine the amount of
foreign currency gain or loss, relating To beth the net inestment and the hedging
instrument, to be recyched on dispesal of the net investment.

First-time Adoption of Internctional Financial Reporting Stendards and [AS
27 Cansalidated and Separate Fimancial Statements. The amendments to IFRS 1
ollows an entity fo determing the ‘cost of investments in subsidiaries, jointly
eontrolled entities or ogsociotes in its opening IFRS financial statements in
accordance with LAS 27 or using o deemed cost. The amendment to IAS 27
requires all dividends from a subsidiary, jointly contrelled entity or associate fo
be recognised in the intome statement in the separate financial statement. Both
revigions will be effective for financial years beginning on or ofter 1 Jonuary
2009, The revision fo IAS 27 will have fo be applied prespectively. The new
requirements affect only the parent's separate financial statement and do not
have an impact on the censolidated financial statements.

Business Combinations and IAS 2VR Consclidated and Separate Financial
Statements. The revised stondords become effective for financial yeors
beginning on or after 1 July 2009, IFRS 3R introduces a number of changes in
the occounting for business combinations occurring after this date that will
impact the amount of goodwill recegnised, the reported results in the period thot
on acquisition occurs, and future reported results, IAS 27R reguires that o
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is
occounted for af an equity transaction. Therefore, such fronsactions will no
longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the
amended standerd changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary
as well as the bss of contral of a subsidiary, Other corsequential amendments
were made to TAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, TAS 12 Income Taxes, [AS 21
The Effects of Chonges in Fereign Exchonge Rates, TAS 2B Investment in
Asgociates and TAS 31 Interests in Joint Vertures. The changes by IFRS 3R and
IAS 2TR will affect future acquisitions or loss of contrel and transactions with
minority infterests.

Bevised Presemtation of Financal Statements. The revised Stamderd becomes
effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009, The Stonderd
separates owner and non-cwner changes in equity, The statement of changes in
equity will include only details of trensocticns with owners, with non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line, In additien, the Standard intreduces
the statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items of recognesed
income ond expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statemerts,
The Group is vet to decide whether fo present one or twe statements.

Finorcial Imstruments: Presenfotion and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Stotements - Puttable Financial Instruments ond Obligations Arising on
Liguidation, These amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1 become effective for
financial yeors beginning on or affer 1 Januery 2002, The revisions provide o
limited scope exception for purtable instruments fo be classified as equity if

For identification purposas only
Ell ErnsT & YOUNG 12
191404008 )

SLIN3IWNJ0a TVNOILIaavy



ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS

SAAREMERE KALA

Cordgolidation Group Anmual Report 2007 - 2008
Tranglation of the Estonion arigiral

« TAS5 3%
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they fulfil o number of specified features. The amendments fo the standards will
have mo impact on the financial position or performance of the Group, as the
Group has not issued such instruments,

Firancial Irstruments: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged Ttems,
These amendments to TAS 3% become effective for financial years beginning on
or after 1 July 2009, The smendment addresses the designation of a one-sided
risk in o hedged item, and the designation of ihflation a3 o hedged risk or porticn
in particular situations. It clarifies that an entity is permitted to designate a
portion of the fair value changes or cash flow variability of ¢ financial instrument
as hedged item. The Group has concluded that the amendment will have no impoct
on the financial position or performance of the &roup, es the Group has rof
entered info any such hedges,

Share-Based Payment [Amendments). The TASH issued an emendment to IFRS 2
in Jonuwary 2008 that clorifies the definition of a westing comditicn and
prescribes the treatment for on oward that is cancelled. This amendment will be
effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 Janusary 2003,

Improvements to IFRSs, In May 2008, TASE issued its first omnibus of amendments to its standards,
primarily with o view to removing incongistencies and clerifying wording. There are separate trensitional
provisions for each standard. The follewing standards hove been amended:

IAS 1 Presertation of Financial Statements

IAS B Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors
IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period:

TAS 16 Property, Plont and Equipmenit

IAS 23 Borrowing Coats

IAS 2B Imestment in Associates

IAS 31 Interest in Joirt ventures

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

IAS 38 Intangible Assets

IFRS T Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The &reup anticipates that these changes will have no material effect en the financial statements.

The preparation of consclidated financial statements in conformity with International Finoncial Reporting
Standerds requires the management to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported
omounts and ocosunting policies of assets and liobilities.

Although the estimations and judgements are reviewed by the management consistenthy and these are
based on the previous experiences and the best knowledge on future trends, the actual outcomes meay
differ from the current estimates. The manogement has made the following significont estimates and
Judgements on the following that have effect on the amounts recognised in the conselidated firancial
ghatements
Determining the eseful lives of property, plant and equipment

Determining the useful hives of intangible assets

Betermining the fair value of net assets oquired from business combination
Performing the goodwill impairment test

Allowances for receivables and inventories

Determining the fair value for biclogical cssets

Estimating the sales oppertunity for non-current assets classified as held for sale

- B # B # =
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E. Investments into jeint vemtures

A joint wenture is an entity where hwo or more parties (incl parent compary) underfake an econamic
activity that is subject to joint confrol,

Investments in joint ventures are recognised in the balonce sheet under the equity method of accounting.
Pursuant to the equity method, the imvestment is initially accounted for at acquisition cost, and odjusted
thereafter on the basis of the changes in the investor's stake in the equity of the investment object, as
well as depreciation of the goodwill arising from the acquisition, or recognition of negative goodwill as
income, less any impairment in the value of the investment. The group's interest in the economic results
of the associoted compary is recorded under “Met financial items™ in the conselidated income statement.
If the joint venture has conducted transactions the effect of which is recognised directly under equity,
the group will also recognise its share of these transoctions directly under owner"s equity.

Unrealized profits ariging from frangactions between joint wventure end group companies are eliminated in
aceordance with the group’s inferest in the joint venture, Unrealised losses are eliminated as well, unless
the logs is generated by decrease in the volue of assets. Irvestment in o joint verture includes the
goodwill arising from the asquisition, less arry accumulated impairment losses,

If the group's stake in the less of the jeint venture recorded based on the equity method equals to or
exceeds the net book velue of the joint venture, the net book valee of the investment will be written
down, end further losses occounted o a reduction of lorg-term receivables which essentially form a part
of the investment in the investment object. There is one exception fo this rule - if the grouwp company
has guaranteed or obliged to satisfy the obligatiors of the essecieted compary, bath the respective
obligation and the loss from the equity method will be recognised in the balence sheet.

F. Foreign currency transactions

The Estanien kroen is the functional currency of the parent compeny, and the reporting currency of the
consolidated financial statements of the group and the unconsolideted financial statements of the parent
company. All other currencies are considered foreign currencies.

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded on the basis of the foreign currency
excharge rates of the Bark of Estonia officially valed on the transcction date, Assets and loabilitees
denominated in foreign currency hove been translated inte Estonian kroons on the basis of the currency
exchange rates of the Benk of Estonia efficially valid on the balance sheet date,

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from revaluation are recorded as revenue and expenses in
the income statement of the reporting period, whereas foreign exchange gains and losses related to
settlements with suppliers and customers ore recorded under revenue and expenses, and other foregn
exchange gains and losses under net financial items in the income statement.

The functional currency of Finnish subsidiaries is the eura. The balances of the transactions, assets and

lighilities of oll Swedish-bosed subsidiaries are tranglated into curos in the subsidiory's consolidated

financial statements. The exchonge rate between the Estonian kroon and the eure has been fixed at 1
= 15,6466 Estonian kroons.

A currency exchange rate difference orises in the corsolidoted balance sheet of the Fimnish-based
subsidiory Sasristomeren Kaola from consolidation of Swedish-based subsidiaries. This is due fo the
difference between the exchange rates for the Swedish kronor and the eurc. The subsidiery hos
therefore translated Swedish kronors into euros on the basis of the following exchange rates:

= agsets and lsobilities have been tronslated on the basis of the official exchange rate of the Bank
of Finland on the balence sheet dote:
» revenue and expenses hove been restated on the basis of the annual average exchenge rate.
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The excharge rate differences arising from revaluations are recognised under "Unrealised exchange
rate dif ferences” in owner's equity.

G. Cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are short-term (with a term of
up to three months), highly liquid investments that are readily corvertible To known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insigmficant risk of changes in market value. Cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand ond at bork, short-term depesits with on origingl maturity of three months or less and
interest morket fund shares,

H. Financial azzets

Financial assets are initially recognised ot cost, being the feir volue of the consideration given The
ocquisition cost includes oll expenditures directly reloted to the purchase of the financial asset,
including service charges payable to brokers and odvisors, non-refundoble taxes and other similar
expenditures. Financial agsets which are measured at fair value with changes in the income statement
constitute an exception — the odditional expenses incurred in connection with their acquisition are
cherged 1o expenses in the income statement,

All regular wey purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the fransection date. A
transaction date is the date that the group commits (e.q. concludes an agreement) fo purchase or sll the
financial asset. Regular way tronsactions are purchases and soles transactions that require delivery of
the financial asset to be purchased or sold by the seller to the buyer within the time frame generally
established by regulation or comvention in the morketplace.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are divided into the belew groups. At the end of each
financial year, the financial asset is tested end reclessified, if necessary. Financial essets which cannct
be reclessified under IFRS constitute on exception, The following principles are applied for financial
asset groups:

financial assets at fair volue, through profit and loss - ere meesured of thesr feir velue:
imvestments to be hebd to maturity ore mecsured at amortised cost;

receivables are measured at amortised cost;

availoble-for-sale finoncial assets ore measured of fair value or acquisition cast, if these assets
are equity instruments whose fair value cannat be reliably measured,

- = ® @

Firmancial 5 ir

Financial afgets measured at fair value are restated each balance sheet date. Potential transaction costs
or dispesal of the assets are rot ceducted from the fair volue. The fair value of lieted securities is
based on the cloging price of the security, ag well as the official exchange rate of the Bank of Estonia on
the balance sheet date. The fair value of unlisted securities is determined on the batid of the available
infermation and by analysing the securities by using the comperative and/or the discounted cash flow
methad,

Gains and losses from the changes in foir velue cre recorded under "MNet financiel items® in the income
statement. Profit and loss from disposal of financial assets measured at fair valee, as well as interest
and dividends, are recorded under "Met financial items” in the income statement.

¥ |E & Al o] E L, T |.|.'
Receivebles, which the group not purchased For resale, including financial assets that are intended to
be held-to-maturity are meosured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Amortised cost is caleulated by taking info account any diseount or premism on ocquisition, as well as
expenses directly related fo the fransaction, over the year to maturity,
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Firancial assets measured af amortised cost will be weitten down, if it is probable that their recoverable
amount is lower than their corrying amount. The recoverable ameunt of o finencial asset measured at
amortited cost i the net pregent value of future cagh flows from the financial asset, diseounted, upon
its initial recognition, with the effective interest rate. The write-down of financiol assets reloted to
operating activities i3 charged fo expenses in the income statement (under "Administrative and genaral
experses”) while the write-deown of financial essets related to investing activities is charged to financial
expenses in the income stofement,

Impairment of financial cssets will be presented separately for each item, if the item is material, On the
basis of historical data, an allowence will be made for deubtful receivables in the amount of 50% of the
receivoable, if the receivable is due for over 20 doys, and in the amount of 100%, if due for over 180 days,
The allswance will be established for doubtful receivables eorlier, if certoin events indicate that the
recoverable amount of the receivable hos fallen below s carrying amount,

In case of collection of receivables previously written down, or other events indicating that the write-
down is o longer justifioble, the previous write-down will be reversed in the income statement a3 a
reduction of the expense item to which the write-down wes initially charged,

Interest income from receivables it recorded under “Met financial items® in the ircome statement,

t igiti 1
Finantial assets measured of acquisition cost will be written dewn to their recoverable amount, if the
recoverable emount has fallen below the carrying amount. The recoverable amount of financial csets
measured at cost corsists of the estimated future cash flows from the financial asset, discourted with
the average rate of return from similar financial assets on the market. The impairment loss is recognised
under finoncial expenses in the income statement, and shall ot be reversed,

Financial assets ore derecognised when the group loses the right on the future cash flows from the
firancial asset, Financial assets are derecognised also if the group undertakes to fully end without eny
significant debay transfer the cash flows to a third party whe has already assumed o majority of the
risks and benefits associated with the financial assets.

I. Irventories

Finished products and work-ir-progress ore recorded of production cost, consisting of the direct ond
indirect production costs incurred upon bringing the iwwentories tfo their present condition and amount,
Seneral production costs are charged to inventories and spread out during the cycle on the basis of the
standard production volumes of finished goods and wark-in-progress,

Other inventories are recorded at acquisition cost, consisting of the purchase price, customs duties,
ather ron-refundable taxes and direct transportation costs related te the purchase, less discounts,

Expenses on imeentories and caleulation of the net book value of imentories are based on the weighed
average cost method,

Inventories are measured in the bolance sheet according to the lower of the acquisitien cost or met
realisable value. Materiols and work-in-pregress are written down, if the estimated cost of products to
be manufoctured exceeds the net realisable value of finished products,

The amount of write-down of imvertories to their net realisable value is recorded under “Marketing
expenses” of the reporting period in the income statement.

J. Biclogical assets

Biological assets include live fish and fertilised fish eggs which are expected To generate econdmic

benefits in the future. In both initiol ard subsequent recognition, bislogical assets ere recorded ot their
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fair value, less the estimated sales experdes, On the mament when biclogical atgets ere transfermed inte
produce, the produce is recognised ot fair value, less the estimated sales expenses. The fair value of
biclogicel assets is the market price of the cssets,

Gaing end lesses ariging from the change in the foir velue are recognised under "Prefit from increase in
the fair value of biclegical assets/Loss from decrease in the Fair value of biological assets®,

K. Property, plant and equipment

PPE are recognised af cost, consisting of the purchase price, nom-refundable fawes and ather
expenditures directly related to the process of faking the non-current osset item info use. The
acpuisition cost of PFE constructed for own use includes the actual cost of construction

Followwng initial recognition, an item of PFE 15 cormied in the balance sheet of its cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impoirment losses,

If the PPE item consists of distinguizhable components with different useful lnes, these comporents ere
separately recorded under assets, and their depreciation rotes specified seporately thereof in
accerdance with their useful lives.

Due to the specifics of the PPE item, its useful [ife may differ from that of a similar group. In this case,
the PPE rtem is viewed a5 o separate item, with a respective depreciation period,

Expenses incurred on PPE ofter their recognition (e.g. replocement of o part of the afset item) are added
to the book value of the item, provided it meets the following criteria:

(a) the asset item i5 likely to generate economic benefits for the group in the future: ond (B) the
acquisition cost can be reliobly measered, Replaced parts are written of f from the belance sheet, All
other costs on maintenance and repairs are charged 1o experses when inturred.

Depreciation of PPE i3 calculated on o straght-line basis. Depreciation rates are determined for eoch
PPE item or PPE group separately, depending on its useful life. The estimated useful life of nor-current
oxsets is inventoried in the course of the annual stock-toke, and upon accounting for improvements. The
remairirg useful life of the non-current assels is chonged when necessory. Depreciation of a mor=currert
esset tem is recognised from the moment the item is operatioral. Depreciation is derecognised if its
final value exceeds the net book value, or unfil the item is removed frem use or reclassified into nor-
current assets held for sale. Depreciation is derecognised if the asset is fully deprecioted.

The depreciation rates, depreciation methods and final values are evaluated on each balance sheet date.

If the recoverable amount of the PPE item [ie. higher of the far value less sales expenses or the velue
in use of the asset item) is lower than its carrying amount, the PPE item will be written douwm to its
recoverable emount, The emount of write-down is charged fo the experses of the peried, under "Other
ENpENSES"

FPE is derecognised upon transfer of the asset, or if the group can expect ne financial benefits from use
or dispogal of the asset. Any profits and lesses ariging from derecognition of PPE are charged to "Other
income™ or "O'ther expenses” in the income statement of the period when the PPE were derecognised.

FPE items which are likely to be sold within 12 months are reclassified info non-current assets held for
sale, and recorded on @ seporate enfry under current assets in the balonce sheet. Non-curent assets
held for sale will no longer be depreciated, ond will be recorded at the lower of the net book value or fair
value (less sales expenses)
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The fallowing annual depreciation rates apply for PPE groups:

+ Lard o%

s  Buildings and facilities 2-20 %

#  Machinery and equipment B-50 %

+  Tronsport vehicles 10-28 %

=  Other equipment; foctures, fittings and fools 10-50 %
L. Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the cocquired net assets, lishilities and contingent lichilities on the date of acquisition. Fellowing initicl
recegnition, geodwill is measured ot cost, less any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill is reviewed
for impoirment anmually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carryirg value may be impaired.

In order to determing the impasrment, ary goodwill acquered 13 allocated to each cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies, or groups of such units. Allocation of goodwill
betwesn cosh-generating units is based on intra-group reporting — goodwill is allecated fo the lowest
level, where it is monitored by the management within the framework of internal accounting.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit, to which the
goodwill relates. Where recoverable amount of the cesh-generating unit is less thas the carrying emownt,
an impairment less is recognised. Amy impairment bosses are chorged fo expenses under "Other expenses”
in the income statement of the reporting period. Impoirment lesses will mot be reversed, if the
recoverable amount of goodwill rises above its carrying amount.

M. Other intangible azsetrs

Intangible asgets ocquired separately from o buginess combinction will be recogrisied anly if the fellowing
conditions are met:

a) the asset item can be tested by the group:
b} generation of future economic benefits from the object is likehy:
) the acquisition cast of the item con be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired from a business combiration will be recognised separately from goodwill, if
the asset items ore distinguishable or arise from contractual or other legal rights, and their fair velue
can be relisbly measured on the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets are initially recorded at acquisition cost, consisting of the purchese price and expenses
directly related to the ocquisition. Following initiol recognition, on item of infangible assets & carried in
the balence sheet at its cost, bess accumulated amortisaton and any accumulated impairment losses,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either infinite or definite. Amortisation of
infangible assets with a definite useful life i3 calculoted on o straight=line besis. The following annual
amertisation Fates are used:

Software |icenses 3%

»  Trademarks 4 %
s  Fish farming licerses 2 % or depending on the
term of validity

Where amortigation is charged on definite intengible assets, this expense i foken to the income
statemnent through the line item to which the assets belong. The amartisation period and amartisation
methods of definite intangible assets ore reviewed at the end of each financial yeor. Changes in
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estimated useful life or future economic benefits over time are recorded as changes in the amortisation
period and amortisation metheds (i.e. as changes in accounting estimates).

If there is any indication that the recoverable amount of definite infangible cssets has fallen below its
carrying emount, the csset will be tested for impairment ond, if necessary, written down to its
recoverable amount.

Infinite intangible assets are tested for impasrment annuolly either individually or at the cash generating
wnit level, These intangible cssets ore not deprecioted. The useful life of infinite intangible assets iz
reviewed on an annual basis to make sure the useful life has remained infinite, Adjustments, where
applicable, are mode on o prospective bosis,

M. Financial liabilities

Financial ligbilities ore initiolly recognrised ot their acquisition cost, consisting of the fair volue of the
consideration given, Following iritial recognition, Financial liabilities are measured at Their emortised cost
by using the effective interest rate method. Tronsoction costs are faken imfo corgideration upon
calculating the effective inferest rate, and charged to expenses over the term of the financial lability

Interest expenses related to the financial lability are recorded under “hNet financwal mems® in the
income statement, except for interest expenses related to the financing of the PFE corstructed for own
use [see alss accounting principle K,

The firancial Kability will be derecognised when the liability iz paid, concelled or expired.

Q. Factaring

Factoring is the sale of receivables. Depending on the type of the factoring contract, the buyer has the
right to sell the transferred receivable within the time agreed (foctoring with recourse), or there is no
right for resale and all the risks and benefits associated with the receivable are transferred from the
seller to the buyer [fectoring without recourse),

Factoring with recourse is recorded os a financing transoction (ie. as collateralised borrowing), and the
amount is recogrised in the balonce sheet as o receivable until collection or until expiration of the
recourse, Factoring liobilities arising from foctoring transactions are recorded similorly with other
financial liabilities.

Factoring without recourse is recognised o5 a sale of receivable. The less from the sale of receivables is
either recogrised o5 a financkal eéxpense or of an impairment expense depending on whether the
transaction was concluded for the purpose of cash flow management or for hedging the risk of
doubtfulfuncollectible receivables.

P. Corporate income teao

Parent and subsidiaries reqi o [l

According to Estonian Income Tax Low the compamy’s net profit is not subject to income tax, thus there
are o temporory differences between the tax bases and carrying values of assets and lisbilities that
may couse the deferred income tax. Instead of net profit, all dividends pasd by the company are subject
to income tax [(22/78 of net dividend paid out before December 31, 2007; 21779 of net dividend peid /
payable out during the colendar year 2008).

The company's potential income tox liability related to the distribution of its reteined earnings os
dividends is not recorded in the balance sheet.

The income tax dug on dividend distribution is recorded as tax cost in the income statement when
dividend is anncunced,
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Subsidiaries registered in foreign courtries
Pursuant fo the lows on income tox, net profit which has been adjusted by temporary and permanent
dif ferences stipulated in the kow on income Tax is subject 1o income tax in Finlond end Sweden (with the
established tax rate is 26% in Finlond and Z8% in Sweden),

Deferred income tox is recorded based on the liability oz ot the bolonce sheet date for all temporary
dif ferences between the tax bases and corrying values of azsets and liskilities. Deferred income tax is
recegnised only if the compeny expects future economic benefits at the expense of which the deferred
income fax can be used.

The payable income fox s recorded under current liabilities, and deferred income tex under non-current
ligkilities.

Q. Mandatory legal reserve

Pursuant to the Commercial Code of the Republic of Estenia, at least 5% of the net profit must be
transferred fo the reserve capital each financial year, until The reserve capital emounts 1o at least 10
of the share copital, The mandatory reserve cannot be paid out af dividends, Still, it can be used for
covering the loss, if loss connat be covered from the awilable shareholder's equity. Mandatory reserve
can also be used for increasing the share capital of the company.

E. Leases

Lease transoctions, where all material risks and berefits from ownership of an asset are transferred to
the lessee, are treated as finance lease. All ether lease trancactions ore treated as eperating lease.

Aszets leased under finance lease are recorded in the lessee’s balance sheet at the lower of acquisition
cost or the net present value of minimum lease poyments. The depreciction period of assets ecquired
under finance lease is the useful life of the asset or the rental period, whichever is shorter, Assets
leased out under finence lease are recorded n the belance sheet a2 o recenvable in the amount of the net
irvestment in the finance lease. Rental payments are divided into financial expenses/income, and rental
payable/receivable so that the interest rate would be the same at any given moment,

In cose of operating lease, the assets ore recorded in the lessor's bolonce sheet. Operating lease
payments are recorded during the lease period as income (by lessor) and expenses (by lessee) based on
the straight-line methed.

5. Government grants

13 | 11 r 1
Bovernment grants allocated for assets ore recorded by uging the gross method, ie. the assets acquired
using gowernment grants are occounted for in the balance sheet at the acquisition cost, and the grant is
recorded in the balance sheet under labilities as deferred income. The acquired ossets are deprecioted
and the deferred income is recognised os income over the useful life of the asset, Income related te
government grants is recorded under "Other income” in the income shotement,

I.rtnmr. fmru. gﬂwmm grmus ig rt:n-rdul il ‘I'ht incame tatement in propartion with the related
experses. The gross method is applied for recording income, i.e. the grent received and the expentes to
be compensated for ore recorded under dif ferent captions of the income statement. Income related to
government grants is recorded under "Other income® in the income statement.

T. Events efter the balance sheet date

Moterial cireumstances that have an effect on the valuation of assets and liabilities arnd became evidert
between the bolence sheet date and the date of prepering the financial stetements, but are related to

mmm
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transactions that took place in the reparting period or earlier pericds, are recorded in the financial
gtotements.

Subsequent events that have not been taken inte consideration when veluating the cssets and liabilities
but hove o material effect on the result of the next finoncid yeor, are disclosed in the financial
statements.

W, Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at the foir value of the received/receivable income. Reverwe from the sales of
goods is recognised when oll material risks related to the ownership of the asset hove been transferred
to the bwyer, the amount of revenue and expenses related fo the transoction con be relicbly measured,
and the receipt of the revenue is probable. Revenue from the soles of services is recorded upon
rendering of the service.

Irterest income and dividend income s recorded when collection of the reverue is probable and the
amount of the revense can be reliably messured, Interest income is recorded besed on the efficient
interest rote of the asset item. Dividend income is recognised when the owner is granted a legal right to
receve dividends.

L Cazh flow statement

The cosh flow statement hos been prepored based on the indirect method - in order fo calculate the
cash flow from operating activities, the net profit for the financial yeor has been adjusted by eliminating
the effect of non-monetary tronsections, ond changes in the bolance of current assets and liabilities
related to operating activities,

W. Accourting for investments in subsidiaries in the parent compamy’s unconsolidated balance
sheet

In the parent compary s unconsclidated balance sheet (presented in Note 30.1), investments in
subsidigries have been eccourted for on o historical cost besis. This means that the investment is
initially recognised at acquisition cost, consisting of the fair valee of the payable amount, adjusted
thereafter by the impairment losses arising from the decrease in the volue of the investment. Additional
information on the write-down of investments recorded of acquisition cost is available under accounting
principle H.

Dividends paid by subsidiaries and joint wenfures are recorded when the parent company’s right to
receive the dividends (as financial income) is established, except for the portion of dividends payable of
the expense of available shareholders’ equity generated by the subsidiary, joint venture or associoted
comparty before the group acquires the compary, The respective portion of the dividends is recorded as o
reduction of the irvestment.

Mote 2  Cash and bank accounts

30.06_2008 30,06, 2007

Cozh and bank “““Tf:‘_..... - _ & 681 14 287

Total & 681 16 287
Mote 3 Short-term financial investments

T 006 S

Term deposits Q 1re

Total 0 ire
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Fixed term deposit contract was terminated on 29102007
Note 4 Receivables and prepayments
Receivables 30042008 3008 2007
Accounts receivable 46 123 449 520
Allowarce for doubtful receivables -67 -5
Government grants receivables [see Mate 19) 5700 g
iOther short-term receivables 1502 1 464
Tatal 5B 259 50 928
Prepayments 30,06, 2008 30.06, 2007
Prepaid taxes, includirg 3 242 2 4468
Value added tax 2 491 ga4
Ircome tax e [ 507
Other taxes 1] Fild
Prepaid expenses 2 503 1871
Total 5745 4 339

Taxes payable have been disclesed in Mote 18,

Naote 5 Allowance for doubtful receivables

The follewing changes occurred in the allawance for doubtful receivabbes:

S - 30.08.2008 30.06.2007
Allowance for receivables at the beginning of period 56 0
Additional write-down =104 =56
Derecognition of impaired receivables 93 0
Doubiful receivables at the end of period -&7 )

During the reporting periad, o fotal of EEK 104 thousand of bad debt, which had previcusly been written
of f from the balance sheet by subsidiories, were collected. During the reporting perwod, subsidiaries
have wreitten of f a total of EEK 93 thousand of bod debts is recorded under “other expenses® in the

incame statement. Doubtful receivables and bad debts are disclased in Mote 22,

The aging of receivables is presented in the table below:

30.0¢.2008 30.06.2007
Meither past due not impaired 85z rer 45 B33
Past due but not impaired (up to 3 months) 2 048 2473
Past due but not impaired {up o & months) 472 2ED
Fast due but not impaired {up to 12 months) 7 812
Pﬂl‘l‘duahufmfm'pﬂm!d{wnrlzmnﬂ'ﬁ} - 5
Receivables total o - 55 259 51 107

At the end of reporting period 2008 there were in total of EEK 5 thousand receivables past due over 12
months. According to management estimation these receivables will be collected m the following

occounting period.

For identification purposas onfy
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MNote &

Mon=-current assets held for sale

The equipment used for processing white fish in the net book value of EEK 284 thousond has been re-
clossified as non-current assets held for sale. The compary’s manogement estimares the sale of the non-
current assets to be very likely in the financial year 2008- 2009,

Mote 7 Inventories and biclogical assets
Tnventories 30.06.2008 30.06.2007
Bow moterials 11 408 ok 92h
Work-in-progress 14 B18 30
Firsshed goeds 24 909 15 785
Soods in transit B35 i}
Total 5] 971 40 T4
Biclogical assets 30,06.2008 30.06.2007
Fingerlings 20 612 26 640
Undersized fish (Fish < 0.4 kg) 0 1 685
Full-grown fish (fish > 0.4 kg) 54 252 50 549
Total 74 904 78 874

Loss from the biological assets in the reporting period was EEK -2 277 thousand ((2007 - profit EEK

13 228 thousand (Mete 22)1

In the measurement of biological assets, fingerlings are mecsured on the basis of the number by pieces,
fish is measured on the basis of live fish blomass by kilograms, Fish are valued on the basis of the
overage market price, less the estimated soles expenses. Fingerlings are valued on the basis of the
weighted overage market price for which Fingerlings hove been sold of purchased from suppliers within
the lest year Fish are divided into three groups: fingerlings, undersize fish ond full-grewn figh.
Firgerlings and full-grewn fish have a real market price, undersize fish hove no cotive market,

MNote B Long-term financial investments

o Effective interest rate  30.06.2008 30.06.2007
Loans I50% a7z 435
Shares 1010 970
Total 1 482 1 409

Long-term financial investments include loans granfed and subsidiories’ long-term investments into

shares and units,

The lean is granted with on interest rete of 3.5 % end repayment due date on 15 December 2013,
Since the fair value of shares recorded as long-term financial investments cannct be reliably meesured,
these shores have been recognised of acquisition cest in the Balonce sheet.

For identification purposes only
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Mote 9 Subsidiaries

The Group incorporates the following subsidiaries:

Share

MName of subsidiamy Country 30.06.2008 30.06 2007

Heimeon Kala Oy Finland 100% 100%
Airistolainen Oy Finland o 100%
Wettel OO Estonia 100% 100%
GourmetHouse OU Estonia B1% 0%
Saaristemeren Kala Oy Finland 100% 100%
Pelar Fish Oy Finland 0% I00%
.S-Iqargﬁ-‘dshuw.u Fisk Ab Sweden 100% 100%
Cwverumans Fisk Ab Sweden 100% 100%
Imatran Kola jo Eavieari Oy Finland 0% BI%

The share in the equity of subsidiaries equals to the vating right.

The subsidiaries” shares have not been listed on any stock exchange.

Subsidiory Airistolainen Gy was merged with subsidiery Heimon Kala Oy on 31.10.2007.

In June 2008 the subsidiary of Vettel OO, Heimon Kala Oy, was sold to the parent company Sooremere
Kala AS, the trarsaction was ron=monefary: it was a settlement of accounts,

The Group holds a share in subsidieries Skiirgdrdchavets Fisk Ab and Overumans Fisk Ab through the
subsidiary Ssaristomeren KEala O,

Subsidiories Poler Figh Oy and Imatran Kala ja Kavisari Oy were sold during the reporting peried and the
tatal prefit from the sele of shares amounted 1o EEK 3 216 thousand (Mate 23).

In July 2007 the compary acquired a 51% shoreholding in GourmetHouse OU, which is registered in
Estenia. The scquisition cost of the imvestment was EEK 3 567 thousand, consisting the following
Components:
+ the purchese/sole price of EEE 3 400 thousend was paid as a monetary contribution for shares,
legal consulting and advisory services o5 well a3 non-refundoble taxes essocioted with the
transaction amounted to a total of EEK 167 thousand,

The fair value of acquired net assers as of OLOT. 2007 was as Follows:

Book value Fair walue
Cash and cosh equivalents 180 130
Recemables and irventories 5 407 5 407
Froperty, plant and equipment B&9 B&9
Borrowings -4 238 -4 238
Met cssets g 228 2228
Fair volue of minority interest L1} 1082
Fair velue of acquired net assets o 1146
Acquisition cost o 3 5T
Goodwill (see Mote 13) 0 2421
Met cash flow from the acquisition of the subsidiary
Paid for services =167
Pard for shares =3 400
Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiary 190
Met cash flow -3 377

The goodwill in the total ameunt of EEK 2 421 recognized from the acquisition transactions is related to
the prafit from synergy ariging from the concept of joint management of subsidiaries.
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On 09052008 the Group sold its 100% shareholding in subsidiary Polar Figh Oy, The 2elling price of the
shares was EEK 970 thousand end the Sroup earned EEK 606 theusand profit from this transaction.

The net assets of the sold subsidiory ot the time of the transaction were es follows:

Polar Fish Oy

Cash and cash equivalents i

Property, plant and eguipment [see Mote

12) 1459

Borrowings -1 095
_ Book value of sold shareholding I64

The net cash flew of the Group in 2008 from the sole of subsidiory i EEK 969 theusand (i, full price of
970 thougand, from which the cash an the balance sheet of the subsidiary on the day of the trensaction
in the amount of EEK | thousand has been deducted)).

On 09.05.2008 the Group sold its 81% shareholding in subsidiary Imatra Kola jo Kaviaori Oy. The selling
price of the shares was EEK & thousand and the group earned EEK 2 610 thousand profit from this
transacticn. Pursuant to the agreement orising from the contract of purchase and sale of Imatran Kala
and Kavisari Oy the claim of the parent company against the subsidary in amount of EEE 2 T30 thousand
was assigned, and liabilities hove been diminished during colculation of net assets at the moment of sole.

The ret assets of the sold subsidiary of the time of the fransaction were o follows:
Irmatra Kala ja Kevisari Oy

Cash and cash equivalents 1
Receivables and imentories 973

incl blological inventories 735
Property, pland and equipment (see Note 12) 2 296
Sovernment grants (see Mote 19) =370
Deferred tax lichilities (see Mote 16) 91
Barrowings -5 410
Boak value of zold shareholding -2 6il

The net cash flow of the Group in 2008 from the sale of subsidiory is EEE 7 thousend (ie. full price of B
thousand, from which the cash on the balance sheet of the subsidiary on the day of the transaction in
the amount of EEK 1 theusand hos been deducted).

As of 30062008, the group has performed goodwill impairment test to determine the recoveroble
emounts of goodwill Impairment test was performed on the basis of the comparative market-bosed
ratios. In cose of the morket-based appreach, the compony is compared with similer compenies in the
same sector which are publicly traded or which hove been recently sold and over the transection price of
which there is sufficient information. In currént cose, the frozen and chilled foodstuff producers in
Europe have been benchmarked o= the corresponding sector and the price levels and various ratios of
these companies are compared. The ratios compared include the price-to sales rotio and the price-to-
bosk ratis, In order to ascertain the foir value, the averoge ratios for the branch of industry have been
cpplied for the actual economic indicators of subsidieries, The illiquidity discount rate of subsidiaries
has been additionally corsidered, since none of the subsidiories are listed or publicly treded on the
morket. The test ascertained that, in Vettel OU (together with Heimon Kala Oy], the coverable amount is
EEK 32 015 thousand higher than the carrying amount of the comperative cash generating unit (2007-
EEK 30 517 thousand higher) and, in Saarigtomeren Eala Oy, Eek 4 251 theusand higher than the carrying
emount of the comparative cash generating unit (2007-EEK 3 813 thousand higher).

For identification purposes only
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Note 10 Jeint ventures
The subsidiary Soaristemeren Kala Oy had a 28.41% stake in the joint venture Kiirteisté Oy Vason

Myltyrenta.

Joint enterprise Location | Share Acquisition cest | Owner's eguity
| 30,06, 2007
Kilnteists Oy Vasan Myllyranta | Soome | 28 41 % TH2 &95

The difference between the acquisition cost and owner's eguity i goodwill ariging on the acquisition and
related to the value of the lecse contract concluded over jointly contralled assets,

Subsidwiry Searistomeren Kala Oy sold its 2B 41% shareholding in joint enterprize Kiinteists Oy Vason
Mylkranta and eorned o profit of EEE 69 thousand from the sale of shares.

Mote 11  Deferred tax assets

The deferred income tax essets include the subsidiary Heimon Kala Oy's income fax receivable in the
amount of EEK 5 541 thousand, arising from the dif ference in the non-current asset tax depreciation and
losses earned in previous financial periods.

The deferred tox lobility has been dischosed in Note 15.

Mote 12 Property, plant and equipment

Lomd and  Machinery Other  Construction- Total
Buldings end  property,  im-pregress  property,
egquipmest plant and and pland and
eqisipment  prepoyments Exjuipmaent
Met book wolue as of 24 10 2006 o 0 a o a
Additions related 1o ceguisition of the 48 324 49 8561 1263 G 354 125802
subsidiary (see Mote 9)
Acquasitions durirg the peried 7 4171 103 1596 5877
Reclassification during the periad s 2797 1145 -3 942 0
Beclassification to men-current assets ! 284 ] Q -284
held for zale
Dispasals at met book value 0 =1 &20 i} i} =1 620
Write-off's at red book volue L -50 -5 ] -85
Currency exchange effects -233 270 -2 ] 505
Depreciation charge -2 672 -4 121 K 1] =7 007
Acquigition cast as of 30.06. 2007 &8 095 54 893 2 504 4 004 19 ars
Accumulated depreciation =2 GED =4 109 =213 0 =T b&E
Het book wolue as of 30.06. 2007 &5 425 B0 483 2 29z 4 004 122 205
Additiong reloted to ocquigition of the 0 Tl a3 0 BEG
subsidiory (see Mote 3)
Acgusinitiors during the perisd 7700 3 TiE I & 817 24 652
Reclazsification during the period 3 B2B =15 B =i 002 i}
Expenges related with subddiery sales -1 915 -T58 -1 085 a -3 785
(mote 3)
Dispasals ot met boak value =& Q5B <G5 ] Q <F BT7
Wite-offs af net book walue a -39 = a -84
Baclagsification oo pericd expense L o Q -39 -39
ﬁmﬂyww effects =203 =252 =g x| =]
Depreciation charge L0800 BT H2% 2 0 2 M0
 Acquisition cost as of 30,04.2008 &9 Ti6 &3 045 1822 & TIT 141 36d
Accumulated depreciation -7 350 -12 BAS 871 0 -20 806
Met book value as of 30.06. 2008 62 366 B0 160 1 251 6 TIT 120 555
For idantification pUFPOSSS oy
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Mar-current assets held for sale are disclosed in Mete 5.
Depreciation by cost lines is disclosed in Note 22,

The acquisition cest of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use is EEK 498 thousand
as of 30.06.2008 (2007 - EEK 268 thousand).

Mote 13 Intangible assets

Trade- Software Licenses, Eoodwill Pre- Total
marks licences  interconnection pearymEntE
fees

et book value as of 4] 4] a 4] o 4]
24102004
Additiors related fo acquisition of 15 B35 H24 11 842 &4 2758 0 93479
the subsidiary (see Mote 9)
Acguisitions during the peried a T L] a a T4
Amartigatean charge =421 =145 -290 a 1] -B856
Acquisition cost as of 30.06 2007 15 B35 557 11842 &4278 a 93 553
Accumuloted amortisation as of =421 =145 =250 1] ] -854
30062007
ket book valee as of 16 415 452 11 552 &4 278 o 92 657
30.04.2007
Additions related te acquisition of a o ] 2421 i 2421
The subgidiary (see Mote §)
Acquisitions during the period o 15 +] o 1726 1741
Amartisation charge -B42 788 =51 o o =1 F11
Acquisition cast as of 30,06,2008 16 836 Gl2 11 B42 b 469G 1726 ar7Tis
Accurnalated amortisation af of =1263 -433 -BT1 t] a -2 547
30.06.2008
ket book value az of 18 573 ire 10971 &6 699 1726 95 148
30.06. 20048

Licenses, interconnection fees include the water protection license n the amount of EEE 25 thousand, an
item with an indefinite useful life.

Prepayments are mode for the implementation and licences of business software NAY pursuant to the
contract

Depruiulﬂnn by cost lines has been disclosed in MNete 22,
Additicnal information on goodwill has been disclosed in Mote 9.
MNote 14  Financial lease and operating lease

Financial lease - the Sroup as a lessee

30,06, 2008 30,006, 2007
Minimum Fresent wolue Minirmum Present value
leaze of minimum lease of minimum
lease lease ts
Feyeble within less than | year 1677 1431 2 556 2307
Fayoble within 1-5 vears 1294 | 2 3152 & B&0
Total minimum leaze payment 2 571 s 08
Furure interest expenses -529 -541
Total present value of minimum 2 442 5 167
lease payments
For identification purposes anly
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01.07.2007-30.06.2008 24.10.06 - 30.06.07
Lease payments paid during the period 2 263 1202
Interests paid during the period £B3 181
Interest rate spread 3=119% 50-130%
Assets ocquired under financial lease terms:
Fixtures and equipment Total
Acquigition cost as of 30.06.2007 21 721 21 TZ1
ket book value as of 30,06, 2007 14 733 14 733
Acguigition cogt ag of 30,06, 2008 21 911 21 911
Met book wvalue os of 30.06 2008 12 511 12 511

The acquisition of subsidisries added assets leased under finance lease with an acquisition cost of EEE

£93 thousand and ¢ met book walue of EEK 246 thousand,

Operational lease - the Group as a lessee

The Group rents transport wehicles, a freerer, scraps crusher, computer- and of fice equipment under
aperational lease ferms.

Equipment Vehicles Total
Lease expenses in 2006-2007 (4 365 434
Lease expenses in 2007-2008 149 926 1075
Estimated lease expenses in 2008-2009 99 983 1082

Mote 15 Shert-term and long-term borrowings

" Shart-term Borrowings Effective interest rate  Repoyment due  30.06.0 30.06.07
date B
Finance leate hobilities (see Note 14) 1677 z 307
Factoring with a kmit EUR 2 000 theusand I7 545 24 T34
Borromings, including 98 545 #9076
Owverdraft, inchuding b 263 3gd
with a limit EUR 168 theusend OF prime +1.25 % Without a ferm 2 M8 1369
with a limit EUR 185 thousand 1month ELRIBOR + 25 % 26 .09 2009 1399 0
with & limit EUR 168 thousend I manth EVRIBOR +» 25 %  Without a term 2 5l 2472
Bonds, imcluding 35 02 2017
Bonds with a coupen rate of 9% 16.50% T8 2007 1} 12 300
Bonds with o coupen rate of 10 % 10.00% 10,07, 2007 i} Ter
Bonds with @ coupon rate of 11 % 1202% 004 2009 35 202 0
Fengion ingurance lean EUR 28 rhousand 6.00% LOT 2030 16 17
Investment keans, including 5102
EEK 39 100 thousand & month EURIBOR = 25 % 16,02 2009 39 100 0
ELR 100 theusand & month EVRIBOS « 18 % 150000048 i85 ERE
EUR 158 thousand & month EWRIBOR « L2 % 15.02. 2008 168 are
EUR T2 thousand & month EVRIBOR + 19 % 30062014 133 133
EuE 135 theusand 3 month EURIBOR + 1.0 % 15,07 2009 258 304
ELR E71 thousand 12 month EURIBOR « 05 % 15.09 2010 571 571
CUR 134 thousand 3 month EURIBOR « 05 % 3008 2007 i 200
EUR 402 thousand 12 maonth EURTROR + 05 % 10122014 23 &35
EUR 100 thousand & month EURIBOR « 1.8 % G03 2010 a3 313
EUE 3 000 thousand & month EURIBOR « 16 % L.02.2080 15 &47 0
Eum 303 thousard OF prime 1.5 % 31,08 2007 [} 470
EUR 315 thousard OF preme «1.5 % 30112007 0 985
ELR 354 thoussnd & marth EURTEOR + 08 % 31052012 a Tag
e S e, T iy
For identification purposas only
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OF prime is the Finnish Csuuspankki bose inferest 450 % as of 30.06.2008,

The irvestment loan in the amount of EUR 354 thousand with an outstanding balance of EEK 3 695
thousend as of 30,06,2007, of which EEK 739 thousand is recorded under short-term debt labilities
and EEK 2 956 thousand is recorded under long-term liabilities was also repaid before the maturity date
in September 2007

Irvestment loan in the amount of EUR 3 000 thousand with an outstanding balance es of 30.06.2008 is
EEK 33 799 thousand, of which EEK 15 64T thousand iz recerded under short-term liabilities and EEE
18 151 thousand under long-term lisbilities, was partly paid before the maturity date in May 2008 in the
amourt of EEK 13 141 thousand,

Danaly

In Jonuery 2007, the compony issued 782 bonds through SEB Eesti Uhispank, thus generating EEK 7 820
thousand of additional funds, The nominal value of the bonds is EEK 10 thousand, and the annual interest
rate is 10%. The redemption dote of the bonds was 10.07.2007.

The Group hos issued bords with a coupon rate of 9 % and nominal wolue of EEK 10 thousand in the total
amount of EEK 12,300 thousand and a redemption date of O7.09.2007, The bomds were redesmed
prematusely on 10,07 2007,

In July 2007 4 000 bonds were issuwed threugh AS Hansapank, frem which the &roup received additional
furds in the total ameunt of EEE 34 B9 thousand, The reminal value of the bapds wes EEE 10 thousand,
with an annugl irterest rate of 11%. The redemption date of the bonds iz 09.04 2009,

Assets pledged as collateral o borrowings have been disclosed in Note 17,

Lorg-term borrowings Effective interest rote  Repoyment 30.06.08 30.06.07
due date

Finance lease lighilities (see Mote 14) 1294 2 B0

Barrowirgs, inthuding 47 308 7 370

Persion irsurarce loan EUR 25 thousard 6.00% LOF. 2030 190 21

Trvestment loars_ ineluding 47 118 117 145
EUR 100 thousand & mamth EVETROS « LB R 1510 3008 a 154
EUR 168 thousand & month EURERBOR + 1.2 % 1512 2008 0 128
EUR 72 thousand & month EURTBOR + L9 % 30.06.2014 663 795
cUR 135 thousand 3 month EURIEOR « LO % 15,07 3005 o 257
EUR 17| thousand 12 month EURTEOR + 0.6 % 15092010 474 1245
EUR 402 theusand 12 month EURTBOR » 0.5 % 10122014 3845 4545
EUR 00 Thewserd b menih EVRIBOR « 1.8 % .03 2080 na )
EUR 354 thousand & month EURIBOR - 08 % 31052012 i} 2 ¥54
EUR 3 000 thousard & manth EURIBOR « 1.5 % 1L0e 2010 18 182 4 F40
EUR [ 500 theusand & month EURIBOR + 1.5 % 102 2000 23470 20 341
EEK 39 100 theusand & month EURIBOR + 25 % 16.02.2009 ] 39 100

Taotal 48 H03 120 230

Mote 16  Deferred tax liability

Deferred tox liability in the amount of EEE 11 087 thousand includes the subsidiery Soerisfomeren Kala
Ov's income tax liability in the amount of EEE 2 BB3 thousand, that resulted from the difference
between the accounting-bese ond tox-bose for depreciation of nom-current assets. In oddition, the
deferred tax liability includes EEK 8 204 thousand resulting from the following transections:

For identifcation purpeses only
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30.06.2008  30.06,2007

Balance ot the beginring of the period 10 420 0
Deferred tox liohility resulting from assets recognised and revalued
to fale vabse In the caurse of business comination

0 & T4l

Change in deferred income tax liabilities resulting from sale of
subsidiaries within the enterprize (see Mate 9)

-9l a
Deferred tax liability resulting from origination and subsequent
revaluation of assets o 3774
Deferred tax liability resulting from revaluation of assets during the
pericod -1 898 o
Amortization of deferred tax liability on revalued asstes resulting
from busiress combination -189 -05
Change in velee resulted from exchonge rate =38 0
Tetal 8 204 10 420

Information on deferred tax assets hove been disclosed in Mote 11,

Mote 17  Loan collateral and pledged assets

Collateral 1o the loans of OU Vettel include o mortgoge on the “Kdrso® registered immovable in the
amount of EEK BO million and o commercial pledge on the comparry's movable property in the emount of
EEK 10 milliorn. The net book value of the Kdrsa registered immovable amourted to EEE 32,5 million as of
30.06.2007,

A commercial pledge established on the shares of Vettel OU in amount of EEK 3 300 thousand . Mo
ligbilities has been secured at the moment,

Collateral to the lsons of Heimon Kala Oy include o mortgege established in the amount of EEE 14 060
thousand and a commercial pledge on the company's immovable property in the emount of EEK 19 953
thousand,

Collateral to the loans of Scaristomeren Kala Oy include a mortgage established in the ameunt of EEK B
182 thousand and o commercial pledge on the comparry's immovable property in the ameunt of EEK 16 681
thousard,

Mote 18  Payables and prepayments

30.06.2008 30.06.2007
Accounts payable 39 573 23 564
Taxes payoble, including 9 255 9 386
Value added tox & 057 & 748
Personal income tax and income tax payable on fringe 1143 1334
benefits
Saciel insurance contributions 1058 T3z
Unemployment insurance 10 8
Mandatery funded pensien Te2 B&D
Corporate income tox 167 4
Pavables 1o employeas 10 447 10333
Interest payables 2 900 3548
Other acorued expenses 1177 3043
Reclamation of goverrment grant 57 0
Total payables 63 409 50 273
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Tax prepayments have been disclosed in Mote 4.
Government grants have been disclosed inMote 19,

Mote 19  Government grants

01,07, 2007 - 24,10,2006 -
30.06.2008  30.06.2007

Deferred income related fo government grants at the beginning of 3z 1]
the period

Additions from acguisition of the subsidiary i} 32 963
Bovernment grants received during the peried 7120 1 505
Movement related to the sales of subsidiory (ses Mote 9) -379 o
Government grants returned =217 o
Currency exchange effect =31 =176
Government grants charged te income in the period (see Mote 22) -6 244 2191
Deferred income related to government grants at the end of 32 350 32 101
the period, incl.

To be charged to income within 1 year 4 470 1967
To be charged to income within 2-17 years 27 880 28 134

During the accounting persod EU gronts in the amount of EEK 160 thousand were repaid from the non-
depreciated residue of the sold property, plant and egquipment.

The Swedish subsidiary Overumans Fisk Ab has been issued on EU grant repayment claim in the amount
of EEK 57 thousand due to vielating the conditions of applying for the EU grants (see Note 18),

In 2004 subsidiary Vettel OU was assigned a structural grant from the Programme for Agriculture,
Fishery and Rurcl Development in the amount of EEK 7 B23 thousond. As of 30.06.2007 port of the
project was completed and the of f-bolance sheet claim o5 of the balance sheet dote was in the amaunt of
EEK & 742 thousond. The project was completed in May 2008 and os of the balance sheet date the lost
propertion of the grant in the amount of EEK 5 814 thousand, was recorded os receivables on the balance
sheet (see Mote 4).

Information on of f-balance sheet receivables associated with government grants has been disclosed in
Mote 28.

MNote 20 Share copital

As of 30.06.2007, the porent compary's share capital in the total ameunt of EEE & &12 thousard was
divided into 661 218 shores, with the nominal walue per share ameunting to EEK 10. The minimum share
capital of AS Sooremere Kala allowed by the compeny's articles of association is EEK 2.5 millien and the
maximurm share capital EEK 10 millian.,

On 05122006 the sole shareholder resolved to incrense the parent company's shere capital and share
premium by a total of EEK 23 047 thousand,

With the general shoreholders’ meeting of 18.00.2007, the parent compony's share capital and share
premium was increased by o total of EEK 111 087 thousand, As of the balance sheet date, all monetary
ond non-mongtary contributions have been mede, and the changes in the compamy's share capital entered
in the Estonian Central Register of Securities.

The non-monetary contribution was valuated by Audiitorbiros Toomes Villems OU.

Transaction Type Sumi

Shereholders of Seoremere Kolo AS Mone tary 23 047

Shareholders of Vettel OO Mon-maonetary 32 197

Shereholders of Saoristomeren Kala Oy hon=manetary TE B30

Total 134 134
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Ag of 30062008, the parent compeny’s share copitel in the fotal emount of EEE & 412 thousond was
divided irfe 661 218 shares, with the rominal velue per share amounting to EEK 10, The minimum shore
capital of AS Sacremere Kaobo cllowed by the company’s articles of asseciation is EEK 2.5 million and the

meximum shore capital EEK 10 millior,
Note 21  Revenue
By fields of activity 01.07.07 - £4.10.06 -
10201 = Processing and storage of fish and fishery products & 372 193 128
46381 - Wholesale of fizh and fishery preducts 399 702 0
03211 - Sea oquoculture 2 436 0
03221 - Freshwater aqueculiure b 624 5 209
10201 =~ Services and other sales 394 3703
5222l - Port and waterways usage-related activities 3 0
Total 472 531 202 040
By geographival areas 01.07.07 - 30.06.08 24,10.06 -
30.06.07
Finland 391 424 169 74T
Estania 67 476 2337
Other countries 13 632 9956
incl Europe 11 414 2020
incl ather 2218 934
Total 472 531 202 040
Mote 22 Operating expenses and other income
o1.07.07 - 24, 1006 -
Lozt of zales 30,06.08 30.06.07
Fow materials, semi-finished goods =291 54 -114 852
Personnel expenses S e -29 758
Depreciation (see Note 12) -12 364 -5 367
Amportisation (see MNote 13) =581 =290
Mitrogen 65 B2
Transportation expenses -3 658 -EBB
Electricity -5 141 -3 451
Write-down of inventeries 4] -1 128
Other expenses 23 314 =11 298
Tetal =396 400 ~-168 813
01.07.07 = 24.10.06 =
Marketing expenses 30.06.08 30.06.07
Transportation expenses -17 894 -8 361
Fersonnel experses =5 209 «1 365
Advertiging and gales organisation =14 &21 7 404
Depreciation (see Mote 12) -2 332 -1271
Amortisation [see Note 13) =g42 -56é
Diher expenses -506 -THD
Total e -20 T35
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01.07.07 - 24.10.06 -
Administrative and general expenses 30.06.08 30.06.07
Adwigory expenses -4 612 -2 078
Personnel expenses -13 33% -5 044
Depreciation (see Note 12) -309 -336
Amortisation (see Mote 13) 288 0
Other expenses =5 T2 -5 147
Total -8 244 -13 605
01.07.07 - 24_10,06 -
Other income 30.06.08 30.06.07
Revenue from government gronts (see Mote 19) 6 244 2191
Insurance indemnities 515 117G
Prafit from sales of property, plant end equipment 3979 o
Criher income &7 12
Tatal 11 704 4 637
Fingeriings ':l:'"'“ ;:'W 24.10.06 -
Profit/loss from biclogical assets 30,0607
&rowth and reclassification 15 219 -4 327 7 545 18 437
Sales -3 779 0 -1 429 -5 209
Total 11 440 -4 327 6 116 13 228
Fingerlings  Urdersize  Ful-grown o g7 o7 .
Profit/loss from biolagical assets fish Tish 30.06.08
Growth and re-calssification 15940 =1 135 11 &15 12 420
Sales -5 549 -&0 =1 180 -7 782
_Biological inventory discount -835 -347 -5 625 -6 5908
Tatal -5 545 =1 542 4 811 -2 &I7

Buring the reporting peried fish from Soaristomeren Kala Oy Pyhiimaa figh farm were sold in the amount
of EEK 2 166 thousend and the rental contract of the Pyhimaa fish form wos terminated. The change in
biological assets of subsidiary Imatran Kala ja Kavisori Oy orises from sale and is reflected threugh net
esset change. Subsidiory Overumons Fisk AR has corried out o full inventory of its bialogical cesets
during the summer 2008 and as a result has written down inventories in the emount of EEK & 908
thousand and in the total quantity of 189 thousand kg, which is due to the wrong management decisions
end insuf ficient inventory manogement of the previous monagement board.

Biological assets are presented in Mote 7.

01.07.07 - 24.10.06 -
Crther expenzes 30.06.08 30.06.07
Boubtful receivables and bod debts (see Mate 5) =104 369
Less from sales of mon-current assets =16 iy =
Foreign exchange losses =32 =37
OHher expenses -3 090 -1222
Teotal -3 242 -1 707
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MNote 23  MNet financial items
01.07. 2007 - 24102006 -
Financial income 30,06, 2008 30,06, 2007
Interest income 5T9 226
Profit from sales of shares af subsidiery units (see Mate 9) 3216 (1]
Other financsal income a1l 28
Total TO6 254
01,07, 2007 - 24.10.2006 -
Financial expenses 30.06_2008 30,06 2007
Interest expense -13 802 -6 319
Other finoncial expense =478 BT
Toral -14 279 -T 146
Mote 24 Income tax
Income tax - a 01,07.2007 - 24.10.2006 -
30.0&. 2008 30.06.2007
Income tax on profit -2 421 =] 633
Change in income tax asset (Heimon Kala Cy) 4 BBO 0
Dreferred income tax, incl (see Note 16) 2 400 =3 679
Origingtion of temporary tox differences ] -37r4
Reversal of temporary tax dif ferences 2 400 25
Total 4 529 -5 372
Mote 25 Earnings per share
2008 2007
Mumber of sheres (in thousands) G661 661
Profit attributable to owners (in thousands of kroons) & 171 2 TEl
Earnings per share (in lroons) 8,34 4 21

Since the group has no contingently issuable commaon shares, diluted EPS equals to besic EPS,

Mote 26 Financial risks

The group's activities invalve severel risks — currency risk, credit resk, inferest rate risk, liquidity risk
and capital risk:

Foreign exchange risk

The currency risk is incurred when the business tronsections, assets and ligbilities are fixed in a
currency which is not the compamy's functicnal currency, At the same time, the group tries te avoid
major apen currency pasitions. The main currencies used ere EEK ard ELR. The company is most exposed
to changes in the Swedish kronor, The group has not used any financial instruments to hedge itself
eganst future currency risks arising from business fransections, assets and liabilities. The group hos no
outstanding significant currency risks as of 30.06.2007 and 30.06.2008.
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Lredit rizk

Credit risk exposes the potential loss that the group may bear as a result of its business pariners not
fulfilling their commitments, To hedge the credit risk, the group continually meniters the poyment
discipline of its customers. The group has no significont credit risks. As of 30, 06.2008, the maximum
credit risk exposure of unwarranted receivables is EEK 481 thousand (2007 - EEK 495 thousand)).

Interest rate risk

The group apples both fixed interest rates and interest rates tied with the EURIBOR. Detoiled
information on inferest bearing liabilities is available in Motes 14 and 15. Mo instruments haove been used
far hedging the interest risk,

Eelow, o summary of the Group's exposure to inferest rate risk is presented os of June 30:

2008 2007

Fixed interest rate <1 year  »1 yeer Total <1 year >1 yeor Total

Interest-bearing receivables 0 472 472 0 439 439
_Interest-bearing liabilities 54 424 1294 55718 47217 2860 S0O77

Met position 54 424 822 55 245 47 217 2421 49 638

Floating interest rate

Interest-bearing liabilities 63343 47308 110651 8960 117370 126330

Met position 63 343 47 308 110 651 8960 117 370 126 330

The Group estimates that a 1% change in interest rates would be reasonably possible. The sersitrvity
onahysis of profit before tax demonstrated that a | percentoge point change (rise or decline) in interest
rates weuld affect (increase or reduce) profit before tox for 2008 by EEK 1 123 thousand (2007 - 1 220
thousand EEE)L

Liquidity risk

According to the estimate of the monegement, the Group will not have liguidity problems provided that:

» i necessay, additional capital can be raised through bonds’ issue(s) (subsequent to the balance
sheet dote bords hove been issued fo the perent compeny of the Group, see Note 20

« someof the loan terms are related with the investment strategy of the parent comparry of the
&roup, which by now have changed and subsequently the manogement is an the opinion that the
repayment ferms can be extended;

+ the parent company increases the share capitel of the Group (the share capitel has been
increased subsequent to the balence sheet date, see Mote 29)

The &roup’s labilities by repayment terms in a long-term timeling are as follows:

«3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years Over B years Total

Az of 30,06, 2008

Borrowings 28 303 98 157 51 632 1045 180 141
Trade payables and other

liabilities 57051 6 061 1350 o 64 501
Tatal B& 354 4 218 53 022 1048 244 642

Az of 3006 2007

Borrowings 54 383 40 404 156 441 1976 253 204

Trade payables and other

liabilities 42 753 7095 Q 0 45 847

Total 97 136 47 498 156 441 1976 303 051
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Capital risk

Capital risk manogement is based on the principle of cost effective system 50 os fo minimize rigk
sccurring from core activities. As all risks related to business growth can not be covered due to practical
ond monetory restrictions, then preventive risk maragement System i wsed, To assure continuing risk
monagement according to an overall, yet simple scheme, equity ratio has been kept on of least 24%. As at

June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2008 the aforesaid ratic hes been cccordingly 33.5% ond 34.1% - which is to
same extent higher than the minimum standord set.

becision abaut dividend poyments is very important for the Sroup, as it may have on effect on the capital
structure and share price. Company's strotegy developments, shoreholders interest and other foctors
have To be considered to make the decision about dividend payments. Taking info consideration that AS
Sooremere Kola is entering into new business activities af well as potential extengion of current
segments, it has been proposed not to distribute profit of the financial year and to trarsfer the ret
profit to retained garnings or fo other copital reserves, but also possibility to increase shore copital
through equity finaneing.

Information on financial instruments of the Group by category is as Follows:

30062008  30.06.2007
Cash and cosh equivalents & 681 16 287
el loans and recedvables & 681 16 287
Receivables &0 996 65 258
dncll loans and receivables 60 996 55 258
Financial imeesiments 480 A48
il foans and receivobles 480 445
Total financial assets 68 157 T1 993
Loans and borrowings 165 280 180 355
el carried at amortized costs 169 249 180 355
Payables &0 510 44 325
ek carried of amorfired cosis G0 510 45 325
Total financial liabilities 229 TTB 226 680

Mote 27  Related party fransactions

Parties whe control the other porty or have significant influence over the business decisions of the other
party ere deemed related parties by the group. Releted porties include:

O  The parent compony (Amber Trust SCA)
O Entities controlled by the porent company
0O Enftities related to the porent company
O The Maonagement Board and Supervisory Board of the public limited company, other manogement
emplovees and private individuals with major holdings in the public limited comparny, except in
cases wherg these individuals do mot have significant influence over the business decisions of
the compary; In addition, related parties melude close relatives of and companies contralled by
the above individuals.
Purchases 01.07.2007 - 24.10.20056-
30.0&. 20048 3006 2007
Companies related to monogement and Services 1362 LT
supervisary board members
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Sabes 01 .07 20007 - 24 10 2008 -
30,06, 2008 30.06. 2007
Companies relofed fo manogement and Other revenue ¥ 4
_Supervigory board members
Receivables 30,06, 2008 30.06, 2007
Componies reloted to manogement and Lustomer 7 g
supervisory board members receivables
Payables 30.06. 2008 30.06.2007
Componies related to manogement and Accounts payeble 206 122
supervisory boord members
Members of maragement and supervisory Other accrued 0 45
board EXPENSES
Enterprise controlled by parent comparny Bonds 10% coupon 0 TBLr
Enterprises related to parent company Bonds 11% coupan 15 765 o
Parent compary Interest pavable oTe 578

Management remuneration

A tetal of EEE 7 786 thousand (2007 - EEE 3 3B9 thousond) was peid to members of the manogement
board and supervisory board of group companies and other manogement employees in the financial year
(weges, bonuses, other benefits). Mo pengion benefits howe been granted to the menegement boord and
supervisory board members by the company,

SErErance compensation o monagement

The maragement board and supervisory boord members have not been granted the right to receive
severance compensation The maximum expense from dismissal compensation would be EEK 300 thousand.

MNate 28  Off-balance sheet assets and liabilities
EU structural gramt

Heimon Kala Oy has been granted EEK 405 thousand from the fish processors and fish whelesalers aid
progremme, of which a3 of the belence sheet dote EEK 172 thousand s recorded as an of f-balance sheet
receivable. The limitation period for the receivable is 31 August 2008. In Octeber 2008 172 thousond
EEK hove been received.

Sooristomeren Kok Oy has applied for gronts in the emount of EEK 1 448 thousand from the fish
processors and Tish wholesalers aid programme, which a3 of the balonce sheet dote is an of f-balance
sheet receivable. In October 2008 applcations in the fotel amount of EEK 1049 thousand hove been
acceded and in Movember 2008 EEK 426 thousand hos been received.

Overumans Fisk Ab has applied for grants in the amount of EEK 2 956 thousand to receive aid from the
fish formers aid programme, which as of the balance sheet date is an of f-belance sheet receivable. In
Mavember 2008 the application has been acceded, but has not been paid out yet

Subsidiary Overumans Fisk AB has written down imventories in summer 2008 in the amount of EEK 5 908
thousand and in the total quantity of 189 theusand kg The claim against previeus management board of
For ldentification purposes onfy
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the subsidiary will be submitted in full amount and is recognized ot the moment as of f-balance receivable
{zee Mate 22,

Income tax from dividends

A5 of Jume 30, 2008, the group’s retained earnings emount to EEK B B13 thousand. The meaximum
possible income tox liability reloted to the payment of the group’s retained earnings as dividends is EEK 1
B51 thousand. The group can thus pay EEK & 962 thousand in net dividends. The maximum possible income
tax liability has been calculated based on the assumption that the net dividends fo be paid, and the
related total income tax expenses woubd not exceed the distributable profit e of the end of the
financial year,

Mote 29  Events after the balance sheet date

In August 2008 the Group issued bonds to the parent compamy in the fotal amount of EEK T 823
thousend ard redeemed the bonds prematurely in December 2008,

In December 200B the Group received a lomg-term loan from o company comtrolled by the paremt
company of the Group in the amourt of EEK 19 558 thousand, which is due to be repaid in September
2009,

In December 2008 the sharehelders of the Sreup decided to issue 53 170 new shares and increcse the
ghare capital by EEK 16 071 thousand,
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Mote 30  Unconsclidated financial statements of parent company

The Porent's uncomsclidated main financial statements presentotion i required by the Estonian
Accounting Law and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements prepared under
International Financiol Reporting Stondards. These unconsolidoted main finoncial statements do not
eorstitute the Parent's separate financial statements as defined in TAS 27 (Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements),

Mote 30.1 Unconsolidated balance sheet of parent company

in thousands of kroons

____30.06.2008 30.06, 2007
Cosh and bank cccourts 4 221 4 904
Receivables and prepayments 20 480 25 748
Total current assets 24 701 30 p52
Long-term financial investments 150 131 151 974
Tetal pon-current assets 150 131 151 974
TOTAL ASSETS ir4 832 182 &27
Borrowings 39 100 T Bl6
Payables and prepayments 865 GE3
Totel current liabilities 359 965 & 499
Long-term borrowings Q 35 100
Taotal pon-current liabilities L] 39 100
Total liabilities 39 965 4T 599
Share capital & 612 & 6L2
Share premium 12T 321 127 521
Mandatory legal reserve 25 0
Reteined eornings 470 0
HMet profitfloss for the reporting pericd =1&1 425
Total owner's equity 134 B&T 135 028
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWMER'S EQUITY 174 B32 182 &27

For identiffication purposas only
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Mote 30.2 Unconsolidated income statement of perent company

in thousards of kroons
01,07, 2007 -30.06, 2008 24 10, 06-30, 06,07

Foeve rue 2 372 180
Cast af sales -2 B3 -181
Gross profit -168 =1
Agministrative and general
ExXpEnSEs =T53 =209
Crher expenses -583 -8
Operating loss -1 494 -265
Financial income 4 102 £ 240
Financial expenses -2 Th9 -§ 480
Het profit/loss for the financial
year =161 435
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Mote 30.3 Unconsolidated cash flow statement of parent company

in thousands of kroons

24.10.2006 -

01,07 2007 - 30,06, 2008 3006, 2007

Operating loss <1454 -265
Change in recenvables and prepayments
related to operating activities 915 =377
Change in linbilities related to opereting
activities 183 218
Total cash flow from operating
activities -2 226 -424
Met cash flow from purchose of
subsidiaries (see Mote 9) -3 567 -1 788
Loans granted 0 66 670
Repayments of loons granted 14 708 4 100
Interest received o987 127
Orthier cash flow 0 212
Total cash flow from investing activities 12 128 -G4 019
Loans received, bonds isseed o 45 BT
Redemption of debt instruments =7 B20
Interest paid -2 T&5 =840
Other cash flow 0 =117
Izsue of shores (Mote 20) L8] 23047
Total cash flow from financing activities =10 585 &8 47
Total cash flow =563 4 504
Cash and cosh equivalends at the beginning
of the period 4 904 © 400
Change in cash ond cash equivalents -683 4 304
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the period 4 221 4 904
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Mote 30.4 Unconsolidated statement of changes in equity of parent company

in thousands of kroons
Share Mardotery  Retained

Share capital premium  legal reserve earnings Tetal
As of 24,10 2006 400 1] L5 4] 400
Share issue 6 212 127 521 #] 0 134 134
et profit for the Financial
year o Q 0 455 495
As of 30,06, 2007 6 512 127 921 (4] 495 135 028
Transfer to legal reserve 0 1] 139 -139 0
Met loss for the fimancial year ] L] ] =161 161
Az of 30.06.2008 6 612 127 921 139 195 134 B&B

Additienal information about the movements in share capital and dividends payable is disclased in Note

20.

Ad justed porent compeny’s unconsolidated cwner's equity o of June 30 is following :

2008 2007

Farent company” s uncorsolidated owner's equity 134 B&B 135028
Met book walue of subsidiaries in the parent compony’s unconsolidated
balence sheet (minus) -150 131 -112 874
Value of subsidiaries caloulated in accordance with equity methed
accounting (plus) 157 474 0
Total 142 211 22 154
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Translation of the Estonian Original

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Saaremere Kala AS
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the consclidated financlal statements of Saaremere Kala AS and its subsidiaries
(hereafter “the Group™), which comprise the balance sheet as of 20 June 2008, the statements of
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The audited financial statements, which we have
identified on the accompanying pages, are enclosed with the current report,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statemenks In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, This responsibility includes: designing,
implemanting and maintaining internal control redevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
tinancial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due te fraud or arror;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies: and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Avditor's Responsibilify

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our awdit, We
canducted our audit in accordance with nternational Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfarm the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whather the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contral
relevant to the enlity's preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We did not attend the physical count of inventories performed at 30 June 2008 in the Group's
subsidiary QU Vettel due to missing information. Inventaries not observed amounted to 25 711
thousand kroons, We also did not attend the physical count of biological assets performed at

30 June 2008 in the Group's subsidiaries Overumans Fisk Ab and Skdrgardshavets Fish Ab in the
total amownt of 21 592 thousand kroons as this was performed prior bo our appointment as auditors
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of these subsidiaries. There were no allernative procedures that could be perfarmed to confirm the
existence of inventory and biotogical assets in the subsidiaries at that date. Accordingly, we wera
unable te abtain sufficient audit evidence regarding the quantities of these invenbories and
biolagical assets as at 30 June 2008,

Qualified Opinion

In gur opinion, excepl for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to
be necessary, had we beéen able to abtain sufficient evidence regarding the matters doscribed in
section "Basis for Qualified Opinion”. the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Group as of 30 June 2008, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying aur oplnion we draw your atbention to Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements in which management has disclosed detailed infarmation on Impairment test for goodwill
acquired in a business combination in order to determine the recoverable amount of goodwill. The
recoverable amount of goodwill is dependent on several management assumptions and estimations,
the gutcome of which can not be currently determined with conclusive certainty. The accompanying
financial statements do nod include any adjustrments that might result from the outcome af this
uncertainty.

Without qualifying our opinion we draw your attention to the fact that as of 30 June 2008 there
were material oulstanding borrowings with a maturity date within up to one year from the balance
sheet date, In notes 26 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements the management has
disclosed its plans for repayment and refinancing of short-term borrowings as well as respective
actions already undertaken subsequent Lo the balance sheel date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

CQur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, The financial information of Saaremere Kala AS as a parent company
in Mote 30 is presented because it is required by the Estonian Accounting Law and is not a required
part of the consclidated financial statements prepared under International Financial Reporting
Standards. Such financial information has been subject to the auditing procedures applled In our
audit of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is prepared in all material
respects in accordance with the requirements of the Estonian generally accepted accounting
principles and in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as whole.

Tallinn, L9 December 2008
,.f.-\.-"'ﬂ:lﬁ..:.'_.

Encken Mapa
Ermist & Yound Baltic AS Authorised Auditor
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ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS

SAAREMERE KALA Consclidation Sroup Annual Report 2007 - 2008

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION PROPOSAL

The management board proposes to add the less for the financial year to the retained earning of

-"' " — 1'
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Aive Varem Pk PentfrDlavi Lahtinen
Chairman of the management board Member of the management board

bl (s

Petri August Oksanen
Member of the management board

19 December 2008

Aiva Yorem
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SAAREMERE KALA ) Cansalidation Group Annual Report 2007 - 2008

SIGNATURES OF THE MANAGEMENT AMD SUPERVISORY BOARD
TO THE ANNUAL REPORT 2008

With this we confirm the correctness of the data presented in the Consolidation Group AS Sooremere
Kala annual report 2008:

& Erik Haowaenie

Kuldor Less
Chairman of the supervitory board Member of the supervisory board
H\?-.'_M"
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Pelka Pentti Olavi Lahtinen
mnfihmmmrﬂ Member of the management board
Pa‘rﬂ.ul.ug-l.m Oksanen
Member of the management board
19 December 2008
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